Doc 9989, A37-AD

# ASSEMBLY 37th SESSION

# Montréal, 28 September – 8 October 2010

# **ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION**

Report



Approved by the Administrative Commission of the Assembly and published by authority of the Secretary General

# INTERNATIONAL CIVIL AVIATION ORGANIZATION

Doc 9989, A37-AD

# ASSEMBLY 37th SESSION

# Montréal, 28 September – 8 October 2010

# **ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION**

Report



Approved by the Administrative Commission of the Assembly and published by authority of the Secretary General

# INTERNATIONAL CIVIL AVIATION ORGANIZATION

Published in separate English, Arabic, Chinese, French, Russian and Spanish editions by the INTERNATIONAL CIVIL AVIATION ORGANIZATION 999 University Street, Montréal, Quebec, Canada H3C 5H7

For ordering information and for a complete listing of sales agents and booksellers, please go to the ICAO website at <u>www.icao.int</u>

Doc 9989, Report of the Administrative Commission Order Number: 9989 ISBN 978-92-9249-083-6

© ICAO 2012

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, without prior permission in writing from the International Civil Aviation Organization.

# **ASSEMBLY – 37TH SESSION**

# ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION

# REPORT

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

General		1
Working arrangemen	ts	1
Agenda		1
Conclusion		2
Agenda Item 63:	Annual Reports of the Council to the Assembly for 2007, 2008 and 2009	3
Agenda Item 64:	Budgets for 2011, 2012 and 2013	4
Agenda Item 65:	Confirmation of Council action in assessing the contributions to the General Fund and determining advances to the Working Capital Fund of States which have adhered to the Convention	8
Agenda Item 66:	Arrears of contributions of the former Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia	9
Agenda Item 67:	Contributions in arrears	10
Agenda Item 68:	Assessments to the General Fund for 2011, 2012 and 2013	13
Agenda Item 69:	Report on the Working Capital Fund	19
Agenda Item 70:	Disposition of cash surplus	22

# Page

Agenda Item 71:	Amendment of the Financial Regulations	23
Agenda Item 72:	Review of expenditures, approval of accounts and examination of Audit Reports for the financial years 2007, 2008 and 2009	24
Agenda Item 73:	Appointment of External Auditor	25
Agenda Item 74:	Report on the use of the Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Fund	26
Agenda Item 75:	Other issues to be considered by the Administrative Commission	27
Appendix:	List of documents and working papers considered by the Administrative Commission	29

		DATE AND NUMBER OF MEETING	
	AGENDA ITEM	30 Sept. 1st	5 Oct. 2nd
7	Agenda Items referred to the Administrative Commission	Х	
63	Annual Reports of the Council to the Assembly for 2007, 2008 and 2009	Х	Х
64	Programme Budget for 2011, 2012 and 2013	Х	Х
65	Confirmation of Council action in assessing the contributions to the General Fund and determining advances to the Working Capital Fund of States which have adhered to the Convention	Х	Х
66	Arrears of contributions of the former Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia	Х	Х
67	Contributions in arrears	Х	Х
68	Assessments to the General Fund for 2011, 2012 and 2013	Х	Х
69	Report on the Working Capital Fund	Х	Х
70	Disposition of cash surplus	Х	Х
71	Amendment of the Financial Regulations	Х	Х
72	Review of expenditures, approval of accounts and examination of Audit Reports for the financial years 2007, 2008 and 2009	Х	Х
73	Appointment of External Auditor	Х	Х
74	Report on the use of the Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Fund	Х	Х
75	Other financial matters for consideration by the Administrative Commission	Х	Х

# SCHEDULE OF ITEMS DISCUSSED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION

# REPORT OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION TO THE ASSEMBLY

1. The Administrative Commission held two meetings between 30 September and 5 October 2010.

2. Dr. Nasim Zaidi (India) was elected Chairperson of the Commission at the second Plenary Meeting of the Assembly.

3. The Commission, at its first meeting, elected Mr. P. Pape (France) as its First Vice-Chairperson and Ms. D. Jimenez (Mexico) as its Second Vice-Chairperson.

4. Representatives from 51 Contracting States attended one or more meetings of the Commission.

5. The President of the Council, Mr. Roberto Kobeh González was present at the first meeting of the Commission.

6. The Secretary of the Commission was Mr. R. Bhalla, Chief, Finance Branch. Mr. H. O'Donnell, Chief, Accounting Services Section acted as Deputy. Ms. L. Lim, Budget Officer, and Mr. R. Deslauriers, Accounting Officer, acted as Assistant Secretaries. Mrs. P. Romano, Accounting Officer, and Mr. A. Bilaver, Strategic Planning Officer, acted as Liaison Officers.

# Working arrangements

7. At its first meeting, the Chairman of the Commission outlined his expectations for the session and indicated that there had been extensive discussion of all items at the Finance Committee and Council meetings. It was therefore anticipated, in the interest of time and efficiency, that the Commission's agenda be dealt with expeditiously, and that the number of meetings be reduced. In particular, a proposal was made by Mr. L. Dupuis (Canada) requesting that the Budget Working Group and Contributions Working Group were not needed and that the items for consideration in these groups be tabled at the Commission instead, without referral to these groups. This proposal was unanimously supported.

#### Agenda

8. Items referred to the Commission by the Plenary and Executive Committee were considered.

- 63 Annual Reports of the Council to the Assembly for 2007, 2008 and 2009
- 64 Budgets for 2011, 2012 and 2013
- 65 Confirmation of Council action in assessing the contributions to the General Fund and determining advances to the Working Capital Fund of States which have adhered to the Convention

- 66 Arrears of contributions of the former Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia
- 67 Contributions in arrears
- 68 Assessments to the General Fund for 2011, 2012 and 2013
- 69 Report on the Working Capital Fund
- 70 Disposition of cash surplus
- 71 Amendment to the Financial Regulations
- 72 Review of expenditures, approval of accounts and examination of Audit Reports for the financial years 2007, 2008 and 2009
- 73 Appointment of External Auditor
- 74 Report on the use of the Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Fund
- 75 Other issues for consideration by the Administrative Commission

9. The documents and working papers considered by the Commission are listed by agenda items in the Appendix to this report (see page 29).

10. The action taken by the Commission in respect of each item is reported on separately in the paragraphs that follow. The material is arranged according to the numerical sequence of the agenda items considered by the Commission.

# Conclusion

11. The Commission recognized the work done by the Working Group on Efficiency (WGOE) in streamlining several processes and in promoting efficiency both within the Council and the Secretariat.

12. The Commission expressed appreciation of the manner in which the Chairman coordinated the proceedings of the Commission in discussing all Agenda Items in a single session.

\_\_\_\_\_

# Agenda Item 63: Annual Reports of the Council to the Assembly for 2007, 2008 and 2009

63.1 Certain parts of the Annual Reports of the Council to the Assembly for 2007, 2008 and 2009 and the supplementary report covering the first six months of 2010 falling within the Commission's field of competence were referred by the Plenary, for the Commission's review.

63.2 At its first meeting, the Commission noted the content and presentation of the section entitled 'Financial Statement' for the years 2007, 2008 and 2009 and the supplementary report covering the first six months of 2010 of the Annual Reports (Docs 9898, 9916 and 9921 and Supplement).

63.3 The Commission recommends to the Plenary that the section entitled 'Financial Statement' of the Annual Reports be approved.

\_\_\_\_\_

## Agenda Item 64: Budgets for 2011, 2012 and 2013

64.1 The Administrative Commission had before it working paper A37-WP/43, AD/2 related to the Draft Budget of the Organization for 2011, 2012 and 2013, submitted by the Council.

64.2 At the first meeting of the Administrative Commission, held on 30 September 2010, the President of the Council presented the Draft Budget of the Organization for 2011, 2012 and 2013 (A37-WP/43, AD/2). The President outlined the three major elements that formed the foundation on which the Draft Budget was formulated. Firstly, in order to provide a sharper vision for the activities of the Organization, the Strategic Objectives were reduced from six to three, namely (a) Safety, (b) Security, and (c) Environmental Protection and Sustainable Development of Air Transport. Secondly, the staffing structure was rationalized to be more organized and efficient and to allow for adequate staffing for language services; the integration of the Comprehensive Regional Implementation Plan for Aviation Safety (AFI) in Africa and a full complement of competencies in all Regional Offices. Finally, to better reflect the priorities of the governing body, the budget was a product of an extensive partnership between the Council and the Secretariat.

64.3 In addition, the President emphasized that the Draft Budget of the Organization for 2011, 2012 and 2013, maintains the results-based framework as well as the split assessment and continues to be supplemented by the Ancillary Revenue Generating Fund (ARGF). This is the first budget that is International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) compliant. It includes the full integration of the Aviation Security Plan of Action, the introduction of a Continuous Monitoring Approach to Safety and an investment in an Electronic Document and Record Management System (EDRMS) and a Computer-Assisted Translation System (CATS) to improve efficiency.

A presentation was delivered by the Secretariat on the proposed Budget of CAD273.1 million as presented in paper A37-WP/43, AD/2 and focused on the budget process, methodology, format and content. It was stated that the basis of the budget exercise was the formation of a Business Plan with 52 programmes. The programmes in the Business Plan were then scaled down and presented to the Council as a menu of options. The programmes presented under the Draft Budget of the Organization for 2011, 2012 and 2013 represent those activities selected by the Council after considerable deliberation.

64.5 Many Delegations expressed their support of the adequate funding of language services. It was stated that the importance of interpreting and translating important technical issues that relate to safety and security must be considered a priority by the Organization and must be adequately funded at all times.

64.6 Several Delegations supported the implementation of the recommendations of the Council found in Annex 5 of A37-WP/43, AD/2. These recommendations, Delegations stated, would enhance efficiency and reporting, as well as lead to good governance and should be continuously reported to and monitored by the Council. In addition, several Delegations welcomed the increased transparency in the draft budget which would allow the Council to better monitor on how the budget is disbursed.

64.7 Some Delegations reiterated the need to seek additional resources, possibly through voluntary donations, to supplement the draft budget and fund those activities which may not have available funding.

64.8 The Chairman thanked the Finance Committee for its extensive deliberation of, and somewhat innovative approach to, the preparation of the draft budget and stated that the Finance Committee should be given continuity, if allowable, in order to oversee the initial implementation of this budget.

64.9 The Administrative Commission supports the draft Budget and recommends that the Assembly adopt the following draft Resolution relating to the Indicative Budget Estimates of the Administrative and Operational Services Costs of the Technical Cooperation Programme and the Budget for the Regular Programme of the Organization for 2011, 2012 and 2013.

# **RESOLUTION FRAMED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION AND RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION BY THE ASSEMBLY**

# **Draft Resolution 64/1\*:**

# Budgets for 2011, 2012 and 2013

A. *The Assembly*, with respect to the Budget 2011-2012-2013, *notes* that:

1. in accordance with Article 61 of the Convention, the Council has submitted and the Assembly has considered annual budget estimates [indicative estimates for the Administrative and Operational Services Costs of the Technical Co-operation Programme (AOSC)] for each of the financial years 2011, 2012 and 2013;

2. in accordance with Articles 49 (e) and 61 of the Convention, the Assembly approves the budgets of the Organization.

**B.** *The Assembly*, with respect to the Technical Co-operation Programme:

*Recognizing* that the AOSC are mainly financed by fees from implementation of projects assigned to ICAO for execution by external funding sources such as Governments, the United Nations Development Programme and other sources;

*Recognizing* that the Technical Co-operation Programme cannot be determined with a high degree of precision until such time as the Governments of donor and recipient countries have decided on the relevant projects;

*Recognizing* that due to the situation cited above, the annual AOSC net budget figures shown below in Canadian dollars (CAD) for the years 2011, 2012 and 2013 represent indicative budget estimates only:

2011	2012	2013
10,700,000	11,000,000	11,600,000

Recognizing that technical co-operation is an important means of fostering the development

<sup>\*</sup> Renumbered A37-26

and safety of civil aviation;

*Recognizing* the circumstances facing the Technical Co-operation Programme of the Organization and the necessity to take continuing measures; and

*Recognizing* that in the event that the AOSC operation for any given financial year ends in a financial deficit, such deficit should first be met from the accumulated surplus of the AOSC Fund and a call for support from the Regular Programme Budget would be the last resort.

*Resolves* that the Indicative Budget Estimates of the Administrative and Operational Services Costs of the Technical Co-operation Programme are hereby approved on the understanding that subsequent adjustments to the Indicative Budget Estimates shall be made within the framework of the annual AOSC Budget Estimates in accordance with the provisions of Article IX of the Financial Regulations.

# C. *The Assembly*, with respect to the **Regular Programme**:

#### *Resolves* that:

1. separately for the financial years 2011, 2012 and 2013, the following amounts in Canadian dollars, requiring an outlay of funds, are hereby authorized for expenditure for the Regular Programme in accordance with the Financial Regulations, and subject to the provisions of this Resolution:

Programme	2011	2012	2013	Total
SAFETY	22,815,000	23,437,000	24,913,000	71,165,000
SECURITY	13,403,000	13,771,000	13,866,000	41,040,000
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT OF AIR TRANSPORT	11,431,000	11,843,000	12,311,000	35,585,000
Programme Support	19,748,000	20,714,000	22,143,000	62,605,000
Management & Administration	13,265,000	13,475,000	14,080,000	40,820,000
Management & Administration - Governing Bodies	6,932,000	7,004,000	7,951,000	21,887,000
TOTAL AUTHORIZED APPROPRIATION =	87,594,000	90,244,000	95,264,000	273,102,000
Operational	86,555,000	89,554,000	94,681,000	270,790,000
Capital	1,039,000	690,000	583,000	2,312,000

2. the separate annual Total Authorized Appropriation be financed as follows in Canadian dollars	5,
in accordance with the Financial Regulations:	

		2011	2012	2013	Total
a)	Assessments on States	82,024,000	84,256,000	88,727,000	255,007,000
b)	Transfer from ARGF Surplus	4,370,000	4,688,000	5,082,000	14,140,000
c)	Miscellaneous Income	1,200,000	1,300,000	1,455,000	3,955,000

# TOTAL: 87,594,000 90,244,000 95,264,000 273,102,000

3. separately for the financial years 2011, 2012 and 2013, the following additional amounts in Canadian dollars, requiring an outlay of funds, are hereby authorized for expenditure for the Regular Programme in accordance with the Financial Regulations, and subject to the provisions of this Resolution to be financed without increasing Assessment of States through Reimbursement from AOSC fund of \$5,311,500 and by the Transfer from Incentive Scheme for Long-Outstanding Arrears Account of \$2,202,200:

Programme	2011	2012	2013	Total
SAFETY	119,000	977,000	888,000	1,984,000
SECURITY	71,000	73,000	76,000	220,000
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT OF AIR TRANSPORT	48,000	49,000	51,000	148,000
Programme Support	387,000	399,000	425,000	1,211,000
Management & Administration	1,262,000	1,295,000	1,349,000	3,906,000
Management & Administration - Governing Bodies	14,000	15,000	16,000	45,000
TOTAL AUTHORIZED APPROPRIATION	1,901,000	2,808,000	2,805,000	7,514,000

\_\_\_\_\_

# Agenda Item65:Confirmation of Council action in assessing the contributions to the<br/>General Fund and determining advances to the Working Capital Fund of<br/>States which have adhered to the Convention

65.1 At its first meeting, the Commission considered A37-WP/49, AD/6 and noted that subsequent to the 36<sup>th</sup> Session of the Assembly, no new State adhered to the Convention and became a Contracting State of ICAO. Therefore, the draft Resolution in the Appendix of the working paper was not referred to the Assembly.

65.2 It was noted at the meeting that, in future, the matter should be referred to the Assembly only if a new State has adhered to the Convention.

# Agenda Item 66: Arrears of contributions of the former Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia

66.1 At its first meeting, the Commission noted A37-WP/47, AD/4 Revision No. 1, which deals with the arrears of contributions of the former Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia (SFRY) relating to the years 1990 to 1992.

66.2 The Commission agreed that this item should be referred to the Assembly only if there is a significant change in the status of the arrears of contributions of the former Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia.

# (10)

### Agenda Item 67: Contributions in arrears

67.1 At its first meeting, the Commission considered A37-WP/56, AD/13 regarding the application of funds from incentive scheme for the settlement of long-outstanding arrears (Report on Assembly Resolutions A34-1 and A35-27).

67.2 The Commission supported the carryover of the \$0.3 million in the special account for new and unforeseen projects related to aviation safety.

67.3 The Commission also considered A37-WP/62, EX/17, AD/16, Revision No. 1, and Addendum No. 1, which provide information on the financial aspects of the question of contributions in arrears as at 28 September 2010 and those Contracting States that had their voting rights deemed suspended. The working paper had previously been considered by the Executive Committee at its first meeting, during which the Executive Committee approved the draft Resolution in Appendix D through its oral report to the Plenary.

67.4 The Commission recommended the adoption of draft Resolution as set out below.

# **RESOLUTION FRAMED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION AND RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION BY THE ASSEMBLY**

# **Resolution 18/1\*: Discharge by Contracting States of financial obligations to the Organization and action to be taken in case of their failure to do so**

*Whereas* Article 62 of the *Convention on International Civil Aviation* provides that the Assembly may suspend the voting power in the Assembly and in the Council of any Contracting State that fails to discharge, within a reasonable period, its financial obligations to the Organization;

The Assembly:

*Considering* that Article 6.5 of the *ICAO Financial Regulations* provides that contributions from Contracting States shall be considered due and payable in full as of the first day of the financial year to which they relate;

*Noting* that in recent years the accumulation of contributions in arrears has increased considerably and has constituted, together with the delays in payment of current year contributions, an obstacle to the implementation of the work programme and created serious cash flow difficulties;

Urges that all Contracting States in arrears make suitable arrangements for liquidating their arrears; and

*Urges* all Contracting States and, in particular, the States elected to the Council, to take all necessary measures to pay their contributions on time;

<sup>\*</sup> Renumbered A37-32

# Resolves that, with effect from 1 January 2011:

1. all Contracting States should recognize the necessity to pay their contributions at the beginning of the year in which they fall due, in order to avoid the need for the Organization to draw on the Working Capital Fund to make good the shortfall;

2. the Secretary General be directed to dispatch to all Contracting States, at least three times in the year, schedules showing the current amounts due for the current year and up to 31 December of the previous year;

3. the Council be authorized to discuss and conclude arrangements with Contracting States, whose contributions are in arrears for three or more years, for the settlement of accumulated arrears to the Organization, any such settlements or arrangements to be reported to the next session of the Assembly;

4. all Contracting States that are three years or more in arrears in the payment of their contributions should:

- a) effect without delay payment of the amounts outstanding with respect to advances to the Working Capital Fund, the current year contribution, and partial settlement of their arrears in the amount of 5 per cent of the arrears; and
- b) conclude within six months of the date of the payment referred to in sub-paragraph a) above, if they have not already done so, an agreement with the Organization for the settlement of the balance of their arrears, such agreement to provide for the payment annually, in full, of their current contributions and the balance of the arrears in instalments over a period of no more than ten years, which period may, at the discretion of the Council, be extended, to a maximum of twenty years in respect of special cases, i.e. those Contracting States which are classified by the United Nations as Least Developed Countries;

5. the Council should further intensify the current policy of inviting Contracting States in arrears to make settlement proposals for the liquidation of long-outstanding arrears of contributions in accordance with the provisions of Resolving Clause 4 above, taking full account of the economic position of the States concerned including the possibility of accepting other currencies in accordance with the provisions of Article 6.6 of the Financial Regulations, to the extent that the Secretary General can use these currencies;

6. the voting power in the Assembly and the Council be suspended for those Contracting States in arrears for an amount equal to or in excess of the total assessments for the three preceding financial years and of those Contracting States not in compliance with agreements entered into in accordance with Resolving Clause 4 b) above, such suspension to be revoked immediately upon the settlement of outstanding amounts due under agreements; and

7. the voting power of a Contracting State suspended under Resolving Clause 6 may also be restored by action of the Assembly or the Council provided:

- a) it has already concluded with the Council an agreement that provides for the settlement of its outstanding obligations and for the payment of current contributions and has complied with the terms of that agreement; or
- b) the Assembly is satisfied that the State's willingness to reach an equitable settlement of its financial obligations to the Organization has been demonstrated;

8. any State whose voting power has been suspended by the Assembly under Article 62 of the Convention may have it restored by the Council under the conditions stipulated in Resolving Clause 7 a) above, provided that a willingness on its part to reach an equitable settlement of its financial obligations to the Organization has been demonstrated;

9. the following additional measures be applied to those Contracting States whose voting rights have been suspended under Article 62 of the Convention:

- a) lose eligibility to host meetings, conferences, workshops and seminars which are funded, in whole or in part, by the Regular Programme;
- b) receive only the same free documentation as that provided to non-Contracting States, including those available in electronic media, and any other documents that are essential for safety, regularity or efficiency of international air navigation;
- c) Nationals or Representatives lose eligibility for nomination to elected offices;
- d) for purposes of recruitment to posts in the Secretariat, if all other circumstances are equal, candidates from States in arrears would be considered as having the status of candidates from a State that has already achieved the desired level of representation (under equal geographical representation principles), even if it has not achieved that level; and
- e) lose the right to participate in the ICAO Familiarization course;

10. only those States which have no outstanding annual assessed contributions except for the current year's assessment will be eligible for election to the Council, Committees, and bodies;

11. the Secretary General be directed to report to Council any voting rights deemed to be suspended and suspension revoked under Clause 6, and to apply measures stipulated in Clause 9 accordingly; and

12. this Resolution supersedes Assembly Resolution A36-33.

#### Agenda Item 68: Assessments to the General Fund for 2011, 2012 and 2013

68.1 At its first meeting, the Administrative Commission examined A37-WP/42, AD/1, Revision No. 1 on the proposed draft scales of assessment for the triennium 2011, 2012 and 2013.

68.2 It was clarified that there was no change to the Methodology; therefore, the existing assessment principles will be maintained.

68.3 The Administrative Commission recommends that the Plenary adopt draft Resolution 68/1.

### **RESOLUTION FRAMED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION AND RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION BY THE ASSEMBLY**

#### **Resolution 68/1\***

#### Assessments to the General Fund for 2011, 2012 and 2013

#### The Assembly:

1. *resolves* that the amounts to be assessed on Contracting States for 2011, 2012 and 2013 pursuant to Article 61, Chapter XII, of the Convention shall be determined in accordance with the scales set out below.

	<u>2011</u>	<u>2012</u>	<u>2013</u>
	%	%	%
Afghanistan	0.06	0.06	0.06
Albania	0.06	0.06	0.06
Algeria	0.11	0.11	0.11
Andorra	0.06	0.06	0.06
Angola	0.06	0.06	0.06
Antigua and Barbuda	0.06	0.06	0.06
Argentina	0.25	0.25	0.25
Armenia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Australia	1.72	1.72	1.72
Austria	0.65	0.65	0.65
Azerbaijan	0.06	0.06	0.06
Bahamas	0.06	0.06	0.06
Bahrain	0.13	0.13	0.13
Bangladesh	0.06	0.06	0.06
Barbados	0.06	0.06	0.06

\* Renumbered A37-27

	<u>2011</u>	<u>2012</u>	<u>2013</u>
	%	%	%
Belarus	0.06	0.06	0.06
Belgium	0.82	0.82	0.82
Belize	0.06	0.06	0.06
Benin	0.06	0.06	0.06
Bhutan	0.06	0.06	0.06
Bolivia (Plurinational State of)	0.06	0.06	0.06
Bosnia and Herzegovina	0.06	0.06	0.06
Botswana	0.06	0.06	0.06
Brazil	1.33	1.33	1.33
Brunei Darussalam	0.06	0.06	0.06
Bulgaria	0.06	0.06	0.06
Burkina Faso	0.06	0.06	0.06
Burundi	0.06	0.06	0.06
Cambodia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Cameroon	0.06	0.06	0.06
Canada	2.55	2.55	2.55
Cape Verde	0.06	0.06	0.06
Central African Republic	0.06	0.06	0.06
Chad	0.06	0.06	0.06
Chile	0.28	0.28	0.28
China	4.06	4.06	4.06
Colombia	0.22	0.22	0.22
Comoros	0.06	0.06	0.06
Congo	0.06	0.06	0.06
Cook Islands	0.06	0.06	0.06
Costa Rica	0.06	0.06	0.06
Côte d'Ivoire	0.06	0.06	0.06
Croatia	0.07	0.07	0.07
Cuba	0.07	0.07	0.07
Cyprus	0.06	0.06	0.06
Czech Republic	0.27	0.27	0.27
Democratic People's Republic of Korea	0.06	0.06	0.06
Democratic Republic of the Congo	0.06	0.06	0.06
Denmark	0.56	0.56	0.56
Djibouti	0.06	0.06	0.06

	<u>2011</u>	<u>2012</u>	<u>2013</u>
	%	%	%
Dominican Republic	0.06	0.06	0.06
Ecuador	0.06	0.06	0.06
Egypt	0.17	0.17	0.17
El Salvador	0.06	0.06	0.06
Equatorial Guinea	0.06	0.06	0.06
Eritrea	0.06	0.06	0.06
Estonia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Ethiopia	0.08	0.08	0.08
Fiji	0.06	0.06	0.06
Finland	0.50	0.50	0.50
France	4.92	4.92	4.92
Gabon	0.06	0.06	0.06
Gambia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Georgia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Germany	6.56	6.56	6.56
Ghana	0.06	0.06	0.06
Greece	0.50	0.50	0.50
Grenada	0.06	0.06	0.06
Guatemala	0.06	0.06	0.06
Guinea	0.06	0.06	0.06
Guinea-Bissau	0.06	0.06	0.06
Guyana	0.06	0.06	0.06
Haiti	0.06	0.06	0.06
Honduras	0.06	0.06	0.06
Hungary	0.22	0.22	0.22
Iceland	0.06	0.06	0.06
India	0.73	0.73	0.73
Indonesia	0.26	0.26	0.26
Iran (Islamic Republic of)	0.20	0.20	0.20
Iraq	0.06	0.06	0.06
Ireland	0.65	0.65	0.65
Israel	0.39	0.39	0.39
Italy	3.52	3.52	3.52
Jamaica	0.06	0.06	0.06
Japan	9.08	9.08	9.08

	<u>2011</u>	<u>2012</u>	<u>2013</u>
	%	%	%
Jordan	0.06	0.06	0.06
Kazakhstan	0.06	0.06	0.06
Kenya	0.06	0.06	0.06
Kiribati	0.06	0.06	0.06
Kuwait	0.23	0.23	0.23
Kyrgyzstan	0.06	0.06	0.06
Lao People's Democratic Republic	0.06	0.06	0.06
Latvia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Lebanon	0.06	0.06	0.06
Lesotho	0.06	0.06	0.06
Liberia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Libyan Arab Jamahiriya	0.09	0.09	0.09
Lithuania	0.06	0.06	0.06
Luxembourg	0.31	0.31	0.31
Madagascar	0.06	0.06	0.06
Malawi	0.06	0.06	0.06
Malaysia	0.47	0.47	0.47
Maldives	0.06	0.06	0.06
Mali	0.06	0.06	0.06
Malta	0.06	0.06	0.06
Marshall Islands	0.06	0.06	0.06
Mauritania	0.06	0.06	0.06
Mauritius	0.06	0.06	0.06
Mexico	1.72	1.72	1.72
Micronesia (Federated States of)	0.06	0.06	0.06
Monaco	0.06	0.06	0.06
Mongolia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Montenegro	0.06	0.06	0.06
Morocco	0.10	0.10	0.10
Mozambique	0.06	0.06	0.06
Myanmar	0.06	0.06	0.06
Namibia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Nauru	0.06	0.06	0.06
Nepal	0.06	0.06	0.06
Netherlands	1.85	1.85	1.85

	<u>2011</u>	<u>2012</u>	<u>2013</u>
	0⁄0	%	%
New Zealand	0.30	0.30	0.30
Nicaragua	0.06	0.06	0.06
Niger	0.06	0.06	0.06
Nigeria	0.06	0.06	0.06
Norway	0.61	0.61	0.61
Oman	0.07	0.07	0.07
Pakistan	0.15	0.15	0.15
Palau	0.06	0.06	0.06
Panama	0.06	0.06	0.06
Papua New Guinea	0.06	0.06	0.06
Paraguay	0.06	0.06	0.06
Peru	0.10	0.10	0.10
Philippines	0.16	0.16	0.16
Poland	0.59	0.59	0.59
Portugal	0.48	0.48	0.48
Qatar	0.41	0.41	0.41
Republic of Korea	2.41	2.41	2.41
Republic of Moldova	0.06	0.06	0.06
Romania	0.15	0.15	0.15
Russian Federation	1.46	1.46	1.46
Rwanda	0.06	0.06	0.06
Saint Kitts and Nevis	0.06	0.06	0.06
Saint Lucia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Saint Vincent and the Grenadines	0.06	0.06	0.06
Samoa	0.06	0.06	0.06
San Marino	0.06	0.06	0.06
Sao Tome and Principe	0.06	0.06	0.06
Saudi Arabia	0.77	0.77	0.77
Senegal	0.06	0.06	0.06
Serbia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Seychelles	0.06	0.06	0.06
Sierra Leone	0.06	0.06	0.06
Singapore	1.07	1.07	1.07
Slovakia	0.11	0.11	0.11
Slovenia	0.07	0.07	0.07

	<u>2011</u>	<u>2012</u>	<u>2013</u>
	º⁄₀	%	%
Solomon Islands	0.06	0.06	0.06
Somalia	0.06	0.06	0.06
South Africa	0.42	0.42	0.42
Spain	2.47	2.47	2.47
Sri Lanka	0.07	0.07	0.07
Sudan	0.06	0.06	0.06
Suriname	0.06	0.06	0.06
Swaziland	0.06	0.06	0.06
Sweden	0.74	0.74	0.74
Switzerland	0.95	0.95	0.95
Syrian Arab Republic	0.06	0.06	0.06
Tajikistan	0.06	0.06	0.06
Thailand	0.50	0.50	0.50
The former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Timor-Leste	0.06	0.06	0.06
Togo	0.06	0.06	0.06
Tonga	0.06	0.06	0.06
Trinidad and Tobago	0.06	0.06	0.06
Tunisia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Turkey	0.63	0.63	0.63
Turkmenistan	0.06	0.06	0.06
Uganda	0.06	0.06	0.06
Ukraine	0.10	0.10	0.10
United Arab Emirates	1.07	1.07	1.07
United Kingdom	5.68	5.68	5.68
United Republic of Tanzania	0.06	0.06	0.06
United States	25.00	25.00	25.00
Uruguay	0.06	0.06	0.06
Uzbekistan	0.06	0.06	0.06
Vanuatu	0.06	0.06	0.06
Venezuela (Bolivarian Republic of)	0.22	0.22	0.22
Viet Nam	0.10	0.10	0.10
Yemen	0.06	0.06	0.06
Zambia	0.06	0.06	0.06
Zimbabwe	<u>0.06</u>	<u>0.06</u>	<u>0.06</u>
	<u>100.00</u>	<u>100.00</u>	<u>100.00</u>

# Agenda Item 69: Report on the Working Capital Fund

69.1 At its first meeting, the Administrative Commission examined A37-WP/48, AD/5, which reports on the adequacy of the level of the Working Capital Fund, the financial position of the Organization, and the financial trends affecting the necessary level of that Fund. The Commission considered the recommendation to maintain the level of the Working Capital Fund at USD 6.0 million for the next triennium.

69.2 After consideration, the Commission recommended adoption of the following Resolution.

# **RESOLUTION FRAMED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION AND RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION BY THE ASSEMBLY**

# **Resolution 69/1\***

# **Working Capital Fund**

# The Assembly:

- *1. Notes* that:
  - a) in accordance with Resolution A36-34, the Council has reported upon, and the Assembly has considered, the adequacy of the level of the Working Capital Fund and the related borrowing authority;
  - b) in recent years, the accumulation of contributions in arrears has constituted, together with the delays in payment of current year contributions, a growing obstacle to the implementation of the work programme while creating financial uncertainty;
  - c) the relatively long budgetary cycle of ICAO, namely three years, has a bearing on the determination of the prudent level of the Working Capital Fund and borrowing authority, as only the Assembly can levy assessments on Contracting States;
  - d) given the number of permanent staff in ICAO, there is an irreducible minimum which the Organization has to pay out each month to meet the staff costs. This amount is not amenable to short term reduction through adjusting the work programme, since permanent staff remain in post and have to be paid in any event;
  - e) on average, by September of each year, the cumulative receipt of assessments was short of estimated disbursement by an average of 10.0 per cent compared to 5.0 per cent for the last triennium;

<sup>\*</sup> Renumbered A37-28

- f) based on past trends, there is only a limited risk that the level of the Working Capital Fund may not be sufficient to cover the needs in the foreseeable future;
- g) experience has shown that payments are not made at the beginning of the year when contributions are due and that ICAO cannot rely on contributions being paid even by the end of the year to which they relate and that such unacceptable avoidance of their financial obligations under the Convention by some Contracting States is leading to a financial crisis within the Organization that could impact all Contracting States;
- h) as long as the cash flow remains uncertain, ICAO would need the Working Capital Fund as a buffer on which it could draw to meet its unavoidable cash commitments; and
- i) the Council reviewed the level of the Working Capital Fund in November 2009 and determined that the need for the increase in the level of \$ 6.0 million was not needed for the present time.
- 2. *Resolves* that:
  - a) the level of the Working Capital Fund remain at \$ 6.0 million;
  - b) the Council shall review the level of the Working Capital Fund no later than November 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013, to determine if an increase is urgently needed during that year or for the following year;
  - c) if the Council determines that it is warranted, the level of the Working Capital Fund shall be established at a level no higher than \$ 8.0 million, subject to increases resulting from advances paid by new States becoming members of the Organization after approval of the scales. Such adjustment to the Working Capital Fund will be based on the scales of assessment in effect for the year for which the increase in the level of the Working Capital Fund is approved;
  - d) the Secretary General be authorized, with the prior approval of the Finance Committee of the Council, to finance regular and supplementary appropriations that cannot be financed from the General Fund and the Working Capital Fund, by borrowing externally amounts needed to meet immediate obligations of the Organization, and that the Secretary General be required to repay such amounts as rapidly as possible; the outstanding total of such indebtedness of the Organization at no time to exceed \$3.0 million during the triennium;
  - e) the Council shall report to the next ordinary session of the Assembly:
    - i) on the adequacy of the level of the Working Capital Fund in the light of experience during 2010, 2011 and 2012;

- ii) whether the financial position of the General Fund and the Working Capital Fund would indicate the need for assessing Contracting States for cash deficits caused by arrears of contributions; and
- iii) on the appropriateness of the level of the borrowing authority; and
- f) Resolution A36-34 is no longer effective and is hereby superseded; and
- 3. Urges:
  - a) all Contracting States to pay their assessments as early as possible in the year in which they fall due in order to lessen the likelihood of the Organization having to draw on the Working Capital Fund and resort to external borrowing; and
  - b) the Contracting States in arrears to meet their obligations to the Organization as promptly as possible, as called for by Resolution A37-32.

## Agenda Item 70: Disposition of cash surplus

70.1 At its first meeting, the Commission examined A37-WP/45, AD/3, dealing with the disposition of cash surplus and after service health insurance (ASHI) liability.

The Commission noted the financial results for the year ended 31 December 2009, showing a cash surplus of \$1.4 million as of the end of December 2009 and the proposal to use this cash surplus to provide the initial funding for staff liabilities arising from the adoption of International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), the largest of which, after service health insurance (ASHI), was estimated at \$56.3 million in the latest actuarial valuation completed in March 2010.

70.3 The Commission considered the proposal and agreed to take note of one Delegation's position that the surplus belongs to Member States. After due consideration, the Commission invites the Assembly to approve the initial funding for after service entitlements as proposed in A37-WP/45, AD/3, paragraph 5.1.

# (23)

### Agenda Item 71: Amendment of the Financial Regulations

71.1 The Commission reviewed, during its first meeting, A37-WP/57, AD/14 that presents amendments to the Financial Regulations.

71.2 The Commission noted one Delegation's comment regarding the benefit of seeking other sources of funding for extraordinary events. The Secretary of the Commission emphasized that the changes to Regulation 8.4 were empowering the Council and not the Secretariat and that the authority to exercise the additional limits was retained with the Council.

71.3 The Commission also noted one Delegation's comment that it did not support the changes proposed to Financial Regulations 7.3 and 8.4.

71.4 In concluding the review of the proposed changes to the Financial Regulations, the Commission recommends the adoption by the Assembly of Draft Resolution 71/1 below.

# **RESOLUTION FRAMED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION AND RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION BY THE ASSEMBLY**

### **Resolution 71/1\***

#### **Amendment of the Financial Regulations**

*Whereas* the Council is respectful of the position of the Assembly in approving the Budgets and Appropriations of the Organization;

*Whereas* the Council is able to meet on a regular basis to deal with exigencies and developments affecting the amounts appropriated;

*Whereas* the Council requires the flexibility between Assembly sessions to accommodate changes in the financing needs;

#### *The Assembly resolves* that:

1. The amendments as set out in the Appendix of A37-WP/57, AD/14 to Financial Regulation 5.2 are approved effective 1 January 2011 and to other Financial Regulations are confirmed pursuant to Financial Regulation 14.1.

<sup>\*</sup> Renumbered A37-29

# (24)

# Agenda Item72:Review of expenditures, approval of accounts and examination of Audit<br/>Reports for the financial years 2007, 2008 and 2009

At its first meeting, the Commission considered the Audited Financial Statements of the Organization and the corresponding audit reports presented as A37-WP/53, AD/10 and Document 9909 for 2007; A37-WP/54, AD/11 and Document 9922 for 2008; A37-WP/55, AD/12 and Document 9942 for 2009 and the consolidated draft Resolutions 72/1 and 72/2 in A37-WP/61, AD/15, Appendix B.

72.2 The Secretary of the Commission reported that after consultation with the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), there is no longer a need for separate Assembly approval of UNDP Statements. Therefore, Draft Resolution 72/2 was not referred to the Assembly. Accordingly, the following Draft Resolution 72/1 is recommended for adoption by the Assembly.

# CONSOLIDATED RESOLUTION FRAMED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION AND RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION BY THE ASSEMBLY

# **Resolution 72/1\*:** Approval of the accounts of the Organization for the financial years 2007, 2008 and 2009 and examination of the Audit Reports thereon

*Whereas* the accounts of the Organization for the financial years 2007, 2008 and 2009 and the Audit Reports thereon, submitted by the Auditor General of Canada (2007) and the Cour des comptes of France (2008 and 2009) - a member of the Joint Panel of External Auditors of the United Nations and Specialized Agencies - as the External Auditor of ICAO, have been submitted to the Assembly after being circulated to Contracting States;

Whereas the Council has examined the Audit Reports and submitted them to the Assembly for its review; and

*Whereas* in accordance with Chapter VIII Article 49 (f) of the Convention, expenditures have been reviewed;

# The Assembly:

1. *Notes* the Report of the External Auditor on the audited accounts for the financial year 2007 and the comments by the Secretary General in response to the recommendations in the Audit Report;

2. *Notes* the Report of the External Auditor on the audited accounts for the financial year 2008 and the comments by the Secretary General in response to the recommendations in the Audit Report;

3. *Notes* the Report of the External Auditor on the audited accounts for the financial year 2009 with related comments by the Secretary General in response to the recommendations in the Audit Report, and the report on the status of the implementation of the External Auditor's prior years' recommendations;

- 4. Approves the audited accounts for the financial year 2007;
- 5. Approves the audited accounts for the financial year 2008; and
- 6. *Approves* the audited accounts for the financial year 2009.

<sup>\*</sup> Renumbered A37-30

# (25)

# Agenda Item 73: Appointment of External Auditor

73.1 At its first meeting, the Commission noted A37-WP/51, AD/8, reporting on action taken by the Council to appoint an External Auditor to audit the accounts of the Organization for the next triennium and seeks confirmation by the Assembly of the action taken by the Council, in accordance with Article XIII of the Financial Regulations.

73.2 The Commission noted the comment made by one Delegation regarding its preference for a fixed six-year term to avoid reselection after three years that was supported by another Delegation, adding that the matter should be referred to the Council.

73.3 In conclusion, the Commission recommended the extension of the term of the First President of the Cour de Comptes of France, as the External Auditor of ICAO for the financial years 2011, 2012 and 2013.

73.4 Accordingly, the following Draft Resolution 73/1 is recommended for adoption by the Assembly.

# **RESOLUTION FRAMED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION AND RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION BY THE ASSEMBLY**

# **Resolution 73/1\***

# **Appointment of the External Auditor**

# The Assembly:

- 1. *Notes* that:
  - a) the Financial Regulations provide that, subject to confirmation by the Assembly, the Council shall appoint an External Auditor to the Organization; and
  - b) the Council approved the extension of appointment to the First President of the Cour des Comptes as External Auditor of ICAO for 2011, 2012 and 2013 for the same fee as charged for the current triennium.
- 2. *Confirms* the action taken by the Council in appointing Mr. Didier Migaud, First President of the Cour des Comptes, as the External Auditor of ICAO for the financial years 2011, 2012 and 2013.

<sup>\*</sup> Renumbered A37-31

# Agenda Item 74: Report on the Use of the Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Fund

74.1 At its first meeting, the Commission noted A37-WP/50, AD/7 and Corrigendum No. 1, which reports to the Assembly on the progress of the projects funded by the ICT Fund.

74.2 The Commission was informed on the progress in implementing the ICAO Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system, Agresso. One Delegation thanked the Secretariat for such a significant achievement with very limited resources.

74.3 The Assembly is invited to note A37-WP/50, AD/7 and Corrigendum No. 1.

# Agenda Item 75: Other issues to be considered by the Administrative Commission

# 75.1: The Establishment of the Safety Fund (SAFE)

75.1.1 At its first meeting, the Commission reviewed A37-WP/239, AD/17, presented by the Council and explaining the decision to establish the Safety Fund (SAFE). The paper proposed a draft Assembly Resolution setting out the objectives and purpose of the Fund and urging all Contracting States, international organizations and public and private parties associated with international civil aviation to make voluntary contributions to the SAFE.

75.1.2 Two Delegations spoke in support of the establishment of the SAFE and expressed their appreciation for the final preambulary clause in the draft resolution, establishing that the SAFE will not impose any costs on the Regular Programme Budget of the Organization.

75.1.3 The Commission, having reviewed the information provided in A37-WP/239, AD/17, submits the following Draft Resolution 75/1 for adoption by the Plenary:

# **RESOLUTION FRAMED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION AND RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION BY THE ASSEMBLY**

# **Resolution 75/1\***

## The Safety Fund (SAFE)

Whereas under Article 44 of the Convention on International Civil Aviation the aims and objectives of ICAO *inter alia* are to foster planning and development of international air transport so as to ensure the safe and orderly growth of international civil aviation, meet the needs of the people of the world for safe, regular and economical air transport, and promote safety of flight in international air navigation;

*Whereas* Articles 69 to 76 of the Convention provide that the Council may make arrangements as appropriate with a view to finding means for the improvement of air navigation facilities of Contracting States as required so as to ensure safe, regular, efficient and economical operation of international air services;

*Whereas*, under Article 70 of the Convention, the Council may, in the circumstances arising under the provision of Article 69, make arrangements with Contracting States relating to the financing of air navigation facilities;

*Considering* that, in some cases, Contracting States may not have access to the necessary resources for improvements to their air navigation facilities, in particular for the remedy of safety-related deficiencies identified through the ICAO Universal Safety Oversight Audit Programme (USOAP);

*Whereas* most developing States experience difficulties in gaining access to many financial market sources, particularly foreign capital markets, for funding their airport and air navigation services infrastructure, including safety-related components of that infrastructure;

<sup>\*</sup> Renumbered A37-16

*Whereas* the High-level Safety Conference (HLSC) 2010 identified several States and regions of the world that are in need of assistance in the development of sustainable levels of aviation safety, and particularly in the development of funding models that would guarantee sustainability in the provision of infrastructure and services for adequate air transport activity;

*Whereas* the HLSC 2010 made a recommendation that ICAO should work with States and Regional Organizations requiring assistance to develop appropriate funding models to ensure the sustainable provision of infrastructure and services based on the level of activity for adequate air transport activity;

*Whereas* the Council decided to establish the Safety Fund (SAFE) with the objective of improving the safety of civil aviation through the use of a performance-based approach which will limit administrative costs and will not impose any costs on the Regular Programme Budget of the Organization, while ensuring that voluntary contributions to the fund are used in a responsible, useful and timely manner;

#### The Assembly:

1. *Expresses appreciation* to Contracting States and international organizations for their contributions to ICAO Funds associated with improving the safety of civil aviation;

2. Urges Contracting States, international organizations and public and private parties associated with international civil aviation to make voluntary contributions to SAFE;

3. *Requests* that the Council support the smooth functioning of the SAFE through consistent monitoring of progress made by the SAFE in funding safety-related projects; and

4. *Requests* that the Council make every effort to attract contributions to the SAFE from States and other contributors.

# (29)

# APPENDIX

# LIST OF DOCUMENTS AND WORKING PAPERS CONSIDERED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMISSION

Agenda Item No.	Subject	Documentation	Draft text for the Report
7	Agenda Items referred to the Administrative Commission	A37-WP/61, AD/15	
63	Annual Reports of the Council to the Assembly for 2007, 2008 and 2009	9898, 9916 and 9921 and Suppl.	A37-WP/325, AD/18
64	Budgets for 2011, 2012 and 2013	A37-WP/43, AD/2	A37-WP/325, AD/18
65	Confirmation of Council action in assessing the contributions to the General Fund and determining advances to the Working Capital Fund of States which have adhered to the Convention	A37-WP/49, AD/6	A37-WP/325, AD/18
66	Arrears of contributions of the former Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia	A37-WP/47, AD/4, Rev. No. 1	A37-WP/325, AD/18
67	Contributions in arrears		
	<ul> <li>Application of funds arising from incentive scheme for settlement of long- outstanding arrears (Report on Assembly Resolutions A34-1 and A35-27)</li> <li>Financial aspects of the question of contributions in arrears</li> </ul>	A37-WP/56, AD/13	A37-WP/325, AD/18
		A37-WP/62, EX/17, AD/16, Revision No. 1, and Addendum No. 1	
68	Assessments to the General Fund for 2011, 2012 and 2013		
	- Draft scales of assessments for 2011, 2012 and 2013	A37-WP/42, AD/1, Rev. No. 1	A37-WP/325, AD/18
69	Report on the Working Capital Fund	A37-WP/48, AD/5	A37-WP/325, AD/18
70	Disposition of cash surplus		
	- Disposition of cash surplus and after service health insurance (ASHI) liability	A37-WP/45, AD/3	A37-WP/325, AD/18
71	Amendment of the Financial Regulations	A37-WP/57, AD/14	A37-WP/325, AD/18
72	Review of expenditures, approval of accounts and examination of Audit Reports for the financial years: 2007 2008 2009	A37-WP/53, AD/10, Doc 9909 A37-WP/54, AD/11, Doc 9922 A37-WP/55, AD/12, Doc 9942	A37-WP/325, AD/18
73	Appointment of External Auditor	A37-WP/51, AD/8	A37-WP/325, AD/18
	<ul> <li>Appointment of the external auditor of ICAO for the financial years 2011, 2012 and 2013</li> </ul>		_
74	Report on the Use of the Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Fund		105 NB/205 15 //2
	<ul> <li>Report on the use of the Information and Communication Technology (ICT)</li> <li>Fund and possible means of financing the modernization of financial systems</li> </ul>	A37-WP/50, AD/7 and Corr. No. 1	A37-WP/325, AD/18
75	Other financial matters for consideration by the Administrative Commission		
	- The establishment of the Safety Fund (SAFE)	A37-WP/239, AD/17	A37-WP/325, AD/18

- END -

